
 

 Council Meeting Agenda – May 17, 2021              1 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

CITY OF EVART 
REGULAR VIRTUAL COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, May 17, 2021 @ 8:00PM 
  

Before each regular virtual council meeting there will be a standing pre-council work session 
from 7:30PM to 8:00PM. Steps for accessing Zoom follow the Agenda. 
 

1. Call to Order: 8:00PM 
 

2. Roll Call  
 

3. PUBLIC HEARING: Community Development Block Grant/Water Related Infrastructure  
 

4. Call Public Hearing to Order at ______pm 
 

5. Request from Public Comments – limited to 3-4 minutes 
 

6. Close Public Hearing at _____pm 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING: APPROVAL OF THE 2021-2022 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET 
 

8. Call Public Hearing to Order at ______pm 
 

9. Request from Public Comments – limited to 3-4 minutes 
 

10. Close Public Hearing at _____pm 
 
11. Citizens’ Comments – limited to 3-4 minutes per individual  

 
12. Approval of Agenda 

 
13. Consent Agenda 

The purpose of the Consent Agenda is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together to be 
dealt with by one Board motion (roll-call vote) without discussion. Any person, whether Board Member, staff or 
public may ask that item be removed from the Consent Agenda to be placed elsewhere on the regular agenda for 
discussion. All such requests will be granted.  
B.  Regular Virtual Council Minutes – May 3, 2021 
C.  Special Council Meeting Minutes – May 6, 2021 
D.  Requesting Approval for Budget Amendments  
E.  Vendor’s List $135,338.24 

 
 

City Council 
Mayor: Chris Emerick 
Mayor Pro-Tem: Sandy Szeliga 
Council: Dan Elliott 
Sean Duffy 
Matt Hildebrand 
City Clerk: Kathy Fiebig 
City Manager:  Sarah Dvoracek 

City of Evart 
5814 100th Avenue 
Evart, MI 49631 
(231) 734-2181 
 

Sarah Dvoracek 
c: (231) 580-6516 
 

www.evart.org 

http://www.evart.org/


 

 Council Meeting Agenda – May 17, 2021              2 
 

14. Unfinished Business  
F.  Schedule another Public Hearing for Rental Inspection Program (postpone) 
G.  Riverside Park Improvements (postpone) 
H.  Housing Commission Request  
 

15. New Business 
Items for Action: 
 I.  4th of July Activities – Discussion   
J.  Attitude Wellness, LLC Marihuana Application Renewal (Provisioning Center, Processor 
and Grow) 
K.  Request to Purchase New Server for City Hall  
L.  Request to Maintain the Evart Area Joint Fire Department Financials    
M.  Resolution 2021-13/Adopting 2021-2022 Fiscal Year Budget 
N. Resolution 2021-14/Approve the Community Development Block Grant for Water-Related 
Infrastructure Including Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements 
O.  First Amended Interlocal Agreement for the Evart Area Joint Fire Department and Joint 
Administrative Fire Board 
P. Depot Wood Floor Refinishing Bids 
 

16. Department/Informational Reports (No Action Needed) 
Q.  Accounts Payable Report (5/4/2021 – 5/17/2021) 
R.  Payroll Reports (5/4/2021 – 5/17/2021) 
S.  Summary of all Funds – April 2021  
 

17. City Attorney Report/Comment 
 

18. City Clerk Report/Comment 
      
19. City Manager Report/Comment       

T.  Evart Car Club – 2021 Car Show cancelled – FYI  
 

20. Finance Director Report/Comment 
U.  Michigan Department of Treasury – Audit Deficiency Corrections 20/21 Fiscal Year – FYI  
V.  Monthly Report – April 2021  

 
21. Department of Public Works Report/Comment 

W.  Monthly Report – April 2021 
 

22. Police Department Report/Comment 
X.  Monthly Report – April 2021 
 

23. Downtown Development Authority Report/Comment 
 

24. Citizens’ Comments – limited to 3-4 minutes per individual  
 

25. Adjournment  
 

 



 

 Council Meeting Agenda – May 17, 2021              3 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Zoom Virtual Meeting: How to Join In 
 
Join Using a Link 

1. Open your web browser 
2. Type in the url: 

 
To be announced the day of the council meeting  
 

This will open the meeting prompt loading page for the meeting 

Entering the Meeting 
Once you have accessed the meeting using your web browser 

1. You will be asked to Open Zoom 

 
 
The language of this pop up notification may be different depending on your browser 
 

2. Click Open Zoom 
 

 
 

3. Click Join with Computer Audio 

 

Documents to be signed after council meeting:  

Resolution 2021: Approval of the 2021-2022 Budget 
Resolution 2021: CDBG/Water Related Infrastructure  



 

 Council Meeting Agenda – May 17, 2021              4 
 

 
a. You can test the audio before joining by clicking Test Speaker and Microphone 

 
 

You are now in the meeting. If you join prior to the start time you will be in a digital waiting room. Five minutes prior to 
the start of the meeting, the moderator will grant you access. 

Join via Phone 
1. On your phone, dial the teleconferencing number provided in your invite Dial 1-888-788-0099 
2. Enter the Meeting ID number when prompted using your key/dial pad Meeting Id: to be announced  

 
You will be prompted to enter your unique participant ID. This only applies if you have joined on the computer or mobile 
device or are a panelist in a webinar. Press # to skip.  
 

You are now in the meeting. If you join prior to the start time you will put on hold. Five minutes prior to the start of the 
meeting, the moderator will grant you access. 

 
To Participate in Public Commentary 
 

Viewing via URL link 

• For those watching our virtual meeting on their device, if you wish to ask a question or make a statement, 
please type your question in the Chat provided.  It will then be read to the council.  

• If you wish to speak a statement or question via your device’s microphone or audio, please indicate so in the 
chat window.  The moderator will unmute your audio when it is your turn to speak.  

•  Video questions, at this time, are not available. 

Teleconferencing  

• If you wish to speak during public comment please press *9 on your telephone keypad, which will alert the 
moderator of your desire to speak. 

• Please ensure you are in a quiet location and mute any video streams so all will be able to hear your comments.  
• When it is your turn to speak, the moderator will identify you by the last four digits of your phone number.  

 

 
 



1 
 

Evart Virtual Council Minutes 5.3.2021 
 

CITY OF EVART 
REGULAR VIRTUAL COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday, May 3, 2021 @ 8:00PM 
 
 

The meeting was called to order at 8:00pm by Mayor Chris Emerick. 
 
Present: Sean Duffy, City of Evart, Osceola County MI, attending remotely 
     Dan Elliott, City of Evart, Osceola County MI, attending remotely 
                Mayor Emerick, City of Evart, Osceola County MI, attending remotely 
                Matt Hildebrand, City of Evart, Osceola County MI, attending remotely 
                Sandra Szeliga, City of Evart, Osceola County MI, attending remotely 
 
Present (City Staff): City Manager Sarah Dvoracek, Finance Director/Treasurer Pepper 
Lockhart (Meeting Co-Host), Communications Director Melissa Rohen (Meeting Co-Host), Chief 
of Police John Beam Jr., Lead Water/Wastewater Operator Patrick Muczynski, City Clerk Kathy 
Fiebig 
 
Guests (per Zoom ID): Evart Farmers Market, Janet’s iPad, Cathie Crew, Laurie Chase, John 
Tanner (OHM Engineering), Andy Campbell and Matt Feldpausch (Baker Tilly), Mom’s iPhone, 
Ralph Carlson, Jennie, iPhone, Dennis Bryant, Jason O’Dell, Ronald, Shelby Chase 
 
Approval of Agenda 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to approve the agenda as presented.  Support by Mr. Elliott.  Motion 
passed with a roll call vote; all were in favor. 
 
Approval of Consent Agenda 
B. Regular Virtual Council Minutes – April 19, 2021 
C. Special Council Meeting Minutes – April 28, 2021 
D. Vendor’s List $41,418.06 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  Support by Mr. 
Hildebrand.  Motion passed with a roll call vote; all were in favor. 
 
Unfinished Business 
E. Schedule another Public Hearing for Rental Inspection Program (postpone) 
F. Riverside Park Improvements (postpone) 
 
New Business 
Items for Action 
G. Housing Commission Request 
Mayor Emerick requested that this item be postponed.  City Attorney James White has been out 
of the office and will not return until May 10.  She would like to consult with him on the issue.  
No action taken. 
H. Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors Utility Rate Study Presentation 
Andy Campbell and Matt Feldpausch explained the utility rate study in detail.  The water and 
sewer funds are both healthy at this point in time, as past councils have been proactive in 
raising rates.  Both systems are being run efficiently and correctly.  Mr. Hildebrand questioned 
the City having more cash on hand (twenty months operating expenses) than the minimum 
recommended (twelve months operating expenses) and wondered why the city would continue 
to raise rates rather than spending down the surplus.  He was told that one major sewer incident 
could easily cost hundreds of thousands of dollars, thereby wiping out the reserve.  That 



2 
 

Evart Virtual Council Minutes 5.3.2021 
 

minimum should be the floor, not the ceiling.  Mr. Campbell recommends a 2% increase each 
year on the sewer commodity charge while leaving the ready to serve charge at the current rate.  
The City needs to continue to generate revenue for upcoming capital improvements.  He 
pointed out that water usage has been dropping drastically over the past few years, and that 
must be considered, as well.  Mr. Campbell briefly discussed a possible bond issue and 
presented scenarios for that.  He encouraged council to call him with any questions.   
 
Department/Informational Reports (No Action Needed) 
City Attorney Report/Comment – none.   
City Clerk Report/Comment - none. 
City Manager Report/Comment  
M. Water & Sewer Capital Improvement Plan – FYI 
Ms. Dvoracek mentioned that there may be funding available through a Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) for water and sewer projects.  Mr. Tanner from OHM 
Engineering explained the logistics of the grant and the projects that could be submitted. 
Finance Director Report/Comment: none 
Department of Public Works Report/Comment 
Interim DPW Administrator Fiebig reported that Bill Parrish has been hired to fill in for Mike 
Flachs, who is now on medical leave for wrist surgery.  Jim Misner has been hired to mow all 
areas that are not subcontracted out to Shades of Green.  Bids are being gathered for street 
sweeping.  The sidewalk inventory is underway, and we are working with the Muskegon River 
Watershed Assembly on the tree grant. 
Police Department Report/Comment 
Chief Beam has awarded a lifesaving award to Officer Douglas.  Officer Douglas overheard an 
ambulance dispatch regarding a person choking and was nearby so responded.  He 
successfully performed the Heimlich maneuver before the ambulance arrived, and no further 
medical treatment was necessary.  The department is working on ordinance violations in 
addition to their normal duties. 
Downtown Development Authority Report/Comment 
Ms. Dvoracek reminded council that Director Eric Kehoe has submitted his thirty-day resignation 
and that the DDA meets tomorrow morning.  She will report on search plans for a new director 
at the next council meeting. 
 
Citizens Comments – none. 
 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to adjourn.  Support by Mr. Hildebrand.  Motion passed with a roll call 
vote; all were in favor.  The meeting was adjourned at 9:55pm. 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Kathy Fiebig 
City Clerk 
 
 



1 
 

Evart City Council Virtual Minutes 5.6.2021 
 

CITY OF EVART 
SPECIAL VIRTUAL COUNCIL MEETING 

Thursday, May 6, 2021 @ 7:30PM 
 
 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Chris Emerick at 7:31pm. 
 
Present (via roll call): Sean Duffy, City of Evart, Osceola County MI, attending remotely 
                                     Dan Elliott, City of Evart, Osceola County MI, attending remotely 
                                     Mayor Emerick, City of Evart, Osceola County MI, attending remotely 
                                       
Absent (via roll call): Matt Hildebrand, Sandra Szeliga 
 
Present (City Staff): City Manager Sarah Dvoracek, Finance Director/Treasurer Pepper 
Lockhart (Meeting Host), City Clerk Kathy Fiebig 
 
Guests (per Zoom ID): John Tanner (OHM Engineering), Andy Campbell and Matt Feldpausch 
(Baker Tilley), Evart Farmers Market 
 
Citizens’ Comments: none 
 
Approval of Agenda 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to approve the agenda as presented.  Support by Mr. Duffy.  Motion 
passed with a roll call vote; all were in favor. 
 
Mr. Hildebrand joined the meeting remotely at 7:35pm. 
 
New Business 
A. Proposed 2021-2022 Budget (Work Session) 
Ms. Dvoracek has made several changes to the proposed budget, most notably moving funds 
from major streets to minor. This will allow the city to repave sections of 1st, 10th and 12th 
Streets. She reminded council that the Baker Tilly rate study recommends raising the sewer 
commodity rate 2% annually, and all water rates 3.5% annually. The budget is based on 
revenue from these raises.  Council verbally approved the changes, agreed to the water and 
sewer rate increases and authorized Ms. Dvoracek to publish the budget as presented tonight, 
then move forward with the public hearing at the next regular council meeting on May 17, 2021.  
While discussing funding street improvements, Andy Campbell of Baker Tilly explained that 
water and sewer funds cannot be used for repaving except for that portion of a street that must 
be torn up to access water or sewer infrastructure.  Water and sewer funds can not be used for 
curb and gutter or storm water infrastructure.  He gave council several options for financing 
these large projects: issuing bonds, using special assessments or raising the City millage 
(currently limited by City Charter to a maximum of 15 mills.) Mr. Hildebrand opposes issuing 
bonds and levying a special assessment.  Mr. Elliott noted that the City has set a precedent for 
using special assessments for such projects and believes it unfair to those paying them now to 
have futures projects ignore that option. Mr. Campbell suggested that council target projects, 
determine the cost, and then decide how to fund them.  Mr. Tanner agreed and stated that OHM 
Engineering could provide estimated costs fairly quickly. 
B. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Application Water Related Infrastructure 
Mr. Tanner explained the parameters of the CDBG grant and identified some of the projects that 
the funds could be used for.  This is a match grant with the City’s match set at 25%.  Motion by 
Mr. Hildebrand to authorize Ms. Dvoracek to pursue a CDBG grant in the amount of $605,000 



2 
 

Evart City Council Virtual Minutes 5.6.2021 
 

with the City’s match to be $151,250.  Support by Mr. Duffy.  Motion passed with a roll call vote; 
all were in favor. 
 
Citizens’ Comments: Evart Farmers Market noted that it’s time for bed. 
 
Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to adjourn. Support by Mayor Emerick.  Motion passed with a roll call 
vote; all were in favor.  The meeting was adjourned at 9:10pm. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Kathy Fiebig 
City Clerk 

















CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF EVART 1/1Page: 05/12/2021 04:33 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 05/03/2021 - 05/17/2021

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

Bank 751 VENDOR

2,130.00 80TH AVE. REFINISHING11333845775105/03/2021
361.00 AMERICAN WATER WORKS ASSOCIATIONAWWA3845875105/03/2021

1,268.00 BS&A SOFTWARE, INC11413845975105/03/2021
314.00 CHARGE POINT3503846075105/03/2021
400.00 CHROUCH COMMUNICATIONS10483846175105/03/2021
600.00 CITY OF EVART AIRPORT RENT9993846275105/03/2021

7,391.37 CONSUMERS ENERGY00243846375105/03/2021
100.00 ED HROSTOWSKI11343846475105/03/2021

8,078.80 ELHORN ENGINEERING CO07613846575105/03/2021
16.07 FERGUSON SUPPLY COMPANY04883846675105/03/2021
200.00 JOHNSON SEPTIC SERVICES20253846775105/03/2021
969.00 MARTIN'S FLAG COMPANY07513846875105/03/2021
800.00 MICHIGAN STATE POLICE4253846975105/03/2021
77.00 MWEA05853847075105/03/2021

8,512.81 PVS TECHNOLOGIES, INC05973847175105/03/2021
250.00 REED COUNTRY REPAIR, LLC20503847275105/03/2021
242.34 SINGLESOURCE20353847375105/03/2021
477.89 STANDARD INSURANCE CO.09033847475105/03/2021
460.17 VERIZON WIRELESS17843847575105/03/2021
278.33 XEROX CORPORATION18033847675105/03/2021
32.00 AFFORDABLE PRINTS1858570(A)75105/03/2021
756.85 CHARTER/SPECTRUM328571(A)75105/03/2021
40.00 DVORACEK, SARAH1978572(A)75105/03/2021
40.00 FLACHS, MICHAEL994573(A)75105/03/2021
40.00 JOHN BEAM JR.1419574(A)75105/03/2021
40.00 MARTIN, DALE1330575(A)75105/03/2021

2,958.71 MR. ELECTRIC OF CNTRL MICH & SAGINA907576(A)75105/03/2021
40.00 MUCZYNSKI, PATRICK1501577(A)75105/03/2021
49.99 PATRICK MCCLURE314578(A)75105/03/2021
40.00 PEPPER LOCKHART1069579(A)75105/03/2021
650.19 SCOTLAND OIL COMPANY, INC.1730580(A)75105/03/2021
826.87 USA BLUE BOOK0740581(A)75105/03/2021

2,916.67 WHITE LAW OFFICE0221582(A)75105/03/2021
20.00 WILSON, MARK1970583(A)75105/03/2021
40.00 ZINGER, ADAM469584(A)75105/03/2021

3,984.43 CONSUMERS ENERGY00243847775105/05/2021
187.23 MARTIN'S FLAG COMPANY07513847875105/05/2021

15,833.34 RCB CONTRACTING 7963847975105/05/2021
4,108.48 FIRST BANKCARD1827585(E)75105/05/2021

V0.00 VOID1827586(E)75105/05/2021
220.07 ALRO STEEL9663848075105/17/2021
235.00 APEX SOFTWARE3453848175105/17/2021

16,500.00 BAKER TILLY MUNICIPAL ADVISORS, LLC11353848275105/17/2021
608.16 CITY OF EVART00283848375105/17/2021

2,704.03 CONSUMERS ENERGY00243848475105/17/2021
2,677.02 CUMMINS BRIDGEWAY, LLC05103848575105/17/2021

20,000.00 DDA-CITY OF EVART06573848675105/17/2021
495.69 DTE ENERGY05763848775105/17/2021
43.00 ELECTIONSOURCE17173848875105/17/2021

3,806.40 ELLEN'S EQUIPMENT, INC07223848975105/17/2021
335.74 EVART PARTS PLUS17663849075105/17/2021
53.50 FILE SAFE, INC10253849175105/17/2021
234.55 HOMETOWN HARDWARE06773849275105/17/2021
433.17 MENARDS - BIG RAPIDS14393849375105/17/2021
150.00 MICH HISTORICAL PRESERVATION NETWOR12853849475105/17/2021

1,150.00 OSCEOLA-LAKE CONSERVATION07393849575105/17/2021
223.66 PIONEER GROUP02553849675105/17/2021

1,200.00 PREIN & NEWHOF, P.C.05793849775105/17/2021
9,896.83 REPUBLIC SERVICES #23918063849875105/17/2021

123.52 SLC METER, LLC19803849975105/17/2021
582.95 SMITH LUMBER CO01293850075105/17/2021
44.91 XEROX CORPORATION18033850175105/17/2021
207.27 LINGO1043587(E)75105/17/2021
387.19 AMERICAN SPECIALTY PRODUCTS1456588(A)75105/17/2021
90.00 DRUG SCREEN PLUS921589(A)75105/17/2021
407.96 MAURER'S TEXTILE RENTAL1757590(A)75105/17/2021

2,062.08 SCOTLAND OIL COMPANY, INC.1730591(A)75105/17/2021
4,934.00 SHADES OF GREEN LANDSCAPING450592(A)75105/17/2021

751 TOTALS:

135,338.24 Total of 67 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 1 Void Checks:
135,338.24 Total of 68 Checks:











































































































- 1 - | P a g e  
 Locate File: G >Resolutions >2021 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
 

CITY OF EVART 
County of Osceola, Michigan  

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-14 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

FOR WATER-RELATED INFRASTRUCUTRE INCLUDING WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS REQUESTING $453,750 IN GRANT FUNDS 

AND A LOCAL MATCH OF $151,250 FROM THE SEWER FUND  
 

APPENDIX B 
 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Strategic Fund has invited Units of General Local 
Government to apply for its Water-Related Infrastructure (WRI) Competitive 
Funding Round; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Evart desires to request $453,750 in CDBG funds to do 
the following improvements: 1) Irrigation piping replacement; 2) Wastewater 
treatment plant emergency power generator installation; 3) Aerator equipment 
replacement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Evart commits local funds from its Local match (City of 
Evart Sewer Funds General Ledger Line 590-538-970-100) in the amount of 
$151,250 (25%); and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed project is consistent with the Local Community 
Development Plan as described in the Application; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed project will benefit all residents of the project area and 
73.27 percent of the residents of the City of Evart are low and moderate income 
persons as determined by Census data provided by the US Department of Housing 
and Urban development or an income survey approved by the MEDC. 

 
WHEREAS, local funds and any other funds to be invested in the project have not 
been obligated/incurred and will not be obligated/incurred prior to a formal grant 
award, completion of the environmental review procedures and a formal written 
authorization to obligate/incur costs from the Michigan Economic Development 
Corporation. 

 
 
 
 



- 2 - | P a g e  
 Locate File: G >Resolutions >2021 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Evart hereby designates the 
City Manager (Sarah Dvoracek) as the Environmental Review Certifying Officer, the person 
authorized to certify the Michigan CDBG Application, the person authorized to sign the Grant 
Agreement and payment requests, and the person authorized to execute any additional 
documents required to carry out and complete the grant. 
 
The above resolution was offered by Member__________________ and supported by Member 
____________________. 
 
YEAS:  ___________________________________________________________ 
 
NAYS: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSTAIN: ___________________________________________________________ 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED APOPTED.  
 
 
Dated: __________________ 
 
________________________ 
Kathy Fiebig, City Clerk 

 
 

 
 

CERTIFICATION  
 

 I, the undersigned duly qualified and acting Clerk of the City of Evart (the “City”), do 
herby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the City 
Council of the City at a regular meeting held on ______________, 2021, the original of which is 
on file in my office and that public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to and in 
compliance with Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended.  
 
 

___________________________ 
     Kathy Fiebig, City Clerk 

 





 1 

FIRST AMENDED INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR THE 
EVART AREA JOINT FIRE DEPARTMENT AND  

JOINT ADMINISTRATIVE FIRE BOARD 
 

 WHEREAS, the Townships of Evart, Orient, Osceola, and Sylvan, and the City of 
Evart, Osceola County, Michigan (collectively the “Participating Municipalities” and 
singularly a “Participating Municipality”), entered the Evart Area Joint Fire Department 
Agreement in 1983 (the "1983 Agreement") pursuant to the Urban Cooperation Act, 
1967 PA 7,  MCL 125.501 et seq (“Act 7”), and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Participating Municipalities desire to update and amend, 
supersede, and replace the 1983 Agreement and implement some administrative 
changes in the structure of a joint administrative fire board, which is responsible for 
executing and administering this First Amended Agreement.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the Participating Municipalities agree to amend and restate 
the 1983 Agreement in its entirety as provided below such that this First Amended 
Agreement will supersede and replace the 1983 Agreement.  
 
ARTICLE I.  RECITALS. 
 
1. Participating Municipalities.  The Participating Municipalities are entering into 

this First Amended Agreement and agree to be bound by its terms and 
conditions.  

 
2. Intention and purpose.  It is the intention and purpose of the Participating 

Municipalities to establish, preserve and maintain a joint fire department and 
joint administrative fire board, which is the most desirable and economically 
feasible plan for furnishing fire protection to the Participating Municipalities.  

 
3. Statutory authority.  The establishment of a joint fire department and a joint 

administrative fire board are authorized by the Urban Cooperation Act, MCL 
124.501 et seq. 

 
4.   Fire Protection.  Each Participating Municipality will be provided fire protection 

services by the Evart Area Joint Fire Department as long as the Participating 
Municipality is a member in good standing and has paid its allocation of the 
operating budget of the Evart Area Joint Fire Department. 

 
ARTICLE II.  CREATION.  The Evart Area Joint Fire Department (“Fire Department”) 
and Evart Area Joint Administrative Fire Board (“Fire Board”) are hereby established 
pursuant to the Urban Cooperation Act, MCL 124.501 et seq. (the “Act”) by the 



 2 

Participating Municipalities to provide fire and emergency services and to administer 
and execute this First Amended Agreement. The Fire Board shall be a public body and 
separate legal entity and shall not be operated for profit.  The Fire Board and Fire 
Department shall possess all of the authority it may have and exercise pursuant to the 
Act and this First Amended Agreement, including but not limited to, entering into 
contracts; employing agencies or employees; acquiring, constructing, managing, 
maintaining, or operating buildings, works, or improvements; acquiring, holding, or 
disposing of property; incurring debts, liabilities, or obligations that, except as expressly 
authorized by the Participating Municipalities, do not constitute the debts, liabilities, or 
obligations of any of the Participating Municipalities; cooperate with a public agency, 
an agency or instrumentality of that public agency, or another legal entity created by 
that public agency under the Act; make loans from the proceeds of gifts, grants, 
assistance funds, or bequests; and form other entities necessary to further the purpose 
of this First Amended Agreement. The separate legal entity may sue and be sued in its 
own name..    
 
ARTICLE III.  ADDITIONAL PARTICIPATING MUNICIPALITIES.  Additional 
municipalities may become Participating Municipalities, provided that any new 
municipality first makes application to the Fire Board and such application is approved 
by the Fire Board and each legislative body of each Participating Municipality.  Any 
new municipality approved to become a Participating Municipality under this First 
Amended Agreement, must execute this First Amended Agreement and become bound 
to its terms and conditions. 
 
ARTICLE IV.  FIRE BOARD ORGANIZATION.  The Evart Area Joint Administrative 
Fire Board shall be composed of five (5) members, with one representative offrom each 
member Participating municipality Municipality (who is a resident of the member 
Participating Municipalitymunicipality) who shall be appointed to six (6) year terms of 
office by the legislative body of each member municipality. A Fire Board member shall 
serve until his or her successor is appointed or until he or she is removed.  In the event 
that one or more Participating Municipalities member municipalities join the Fire 
Board, each new Participating Municipality member shall appoint one (1) Fire Board 
Membermember. A Fire Board Member member shall not be an employee, or volunteer 
or independent contractor of any the fire Fire departmentDepartment. 
 
Members may be removed from the Fire Board by the appointing governing body at 
will. A vacancy shall occur in the event of the removal, resignation, death, or conviction 
of a felony, or in the event a member ceases to be a resident of the Participating 
Municipality municipality of the Party that appointed the Fire Board member or 
otherwise as provided by law. Vacancies on the Evart Area Joint Administrative Fire 
Board shall be filled by the legislative body of the unrepresented Participating 
Municipality member municipality for the unexpired term.  The existing members and 

Commented [LAD1]: We recommended members of the 
Board only be removed for cause (i.e. misfeasance, 
malfeasance or nonfeasance of office).  



 3 

officers shall be continued as the members and officers of the Evart Area Joint 
Administrative Fire Board.   
 
A member of the Fire Board may be compensated for each Fire Board meeting attended 
by the member, not to exceed fifty-two 52 meetings per year, at a rate established and 
paid by the participating municipality he or she represents.   
 
Each Fire Board Member shall have one vote.  A tie vote on any motion shall be deemed 
to defeat the motion. A majority of the members of the Fire Board constitutes a quorum 
to conduct business.   
 
1.  Officers.  The offices of the Evart Area Joint Administrative Fire Board shall be:  
 
 Chairperson 
 Vice Chairperson 
 Treasurer 
 Deputy Treasurer 
 Secretary 
 
The members of the Fire Board shall annually elect the Chairperson and Vice 
Chairperson of the Fire Board in December of each year. The Fire Board shall elect its 
other officers (Treasurer, Deputy Treasurer and Secretary) from its members in 
December of even years.representatives of each member municipality shall annually 
elect the officers of the Evart Area Joint Administrative Fire Board.   
 
 
The Secretary shall record the minutes of the Fire Board meetings, and mail copies of 
the minutes and notices of meetings to the clerks of each Participating Municipality 
member municipality as requested.  The Treasurer shall keep books of accounts and 
records of income and expenditures, make detailed line item reports thereof to the Fire 
Board at its meetings, make deposits of money received in such bank accounts as are 
established by resolution of the Fire Board, make bills to the Participating 
Municipalities member municipalities as required by this First Amended Agreement, 
and perform such other services as directed by the Fire Board.   
 
2.  Meetings.  The Fire Board shall meet at least on a quarterly basis, or more often as 
business requires, or upon the written request of the Chairperson, any two (2) Fire 
Board members, or any Participating Municipality. The Evart Area Joint Administrative 
Fire Board shall hold and conduct its meetings in compliance with the Open Meetings 
Act, using the most current version of Robert’s Rules of Order as a guideline for the Fire 
Board.  
 



 4 

3.  Records.  The records of the Evart Area Joint Administrative Fire Board shall be 
subject to the Freedom of Information Act, and a FOIA coordinator shall be appointed 
by the Fire Board. All records kept and maintained by the Fire Board must be made 
available upon demand to each of the Participating Municipalities. 
 
4.  Bonds.  The Evart Area Joint Administrative Fire Board is authorized to obtain bonds 
or bonding for its officers, Fire Chief, and Administrative Assistant as determined by 
the Fire Board, and in amounts determined by the Fire Board, and the Fire Board shall 
pay the cost of obtaining and maintaining the bonds. 
 
5.  Administrative Assistant.  The Evart Area Joint Administrative Fire Board can 
select, appoint, hire, discipline, discharge, and pay an Administrative Assistant as an at 
will employee to provide administrative assistance to the Evart Area Joint 
Administrative Fire Board.  
 
6.  Fire Chief.  The Evart Area Joint Administrative Fire Board shall appoint a Fire Chief 
for the Evart Area Joint Administrative Fire Department and the Fire Chief shall be an 
ex-officio nonvoting member of the Evart Area Joint Administrative Fire Board.  The 
Fire Chief can appoint a designee to attend meetings in his place and act as an ex-officio 
nonvoting member of the Fire Board. 
 
4.  Bonds.  The Evart Area Joint Administrative Fire Board is authorized to obtain bonds 
or bonding for its officers, Fire Chief, and Administrative Assistant as determined by 
the Fire Board, and in amounts determined by the Fire Board, and the Fire Board shall 
pay the cost of obtaining and maintaining the bonds. 
 
7.  Property.  The Evart Area Joint Administrative Fire Board shall acquire, hold, and 
own the property necessary to establish, construct, enlarge, improve, maintain, equip, 
operate and regulate the Evart Area Joint Fire Department for the benefit of the 
Participating Municipalitiesparticipating municipalities.  The Evart Area Joint 
Administrative Fire Board is authorized to sell or scrap property it no longer needs or 
uses by public sale, with all proceeds retained by the Evart Area Joint Administrative 
Fire Board. 
 
8.  Employees.  The Evart Area Joint Administrative Fire Board may appoint and 
employ a Fire Chief and such firemen and officers as may be required for the proper 
and efficient operation and maintenance of the Evart Area Joint Fire Department; 
establish rules and regulations for governing the Evart Area Joint Fire Department, and 
the employees, firemen, and officers thereof; provide for the care and management of 
the engines, equipment, apparatus, property, and buildings of or pertaining to the Fire 
Department and shall prescribe the powers, responsibilities, and duties of its 
employees, officer and firemen. 
 



 5 

9.  Contracts.  The Evart Area Joint Administrative Fire Board may contract with any 
company, contractor, individual, vendor, or public or private corporation for the 
provision of any service, supply, equipment or labor necessary or customary to 
furnishing fire protection. 
 
10.  Budget.  The Evart Area Joint Administrative Fire Board shall prepare an annual 
detailed line item budget for operating and capital expenditure needs, which shall be 
submitted to the Participating Municipalities participating municipalities no later than 
February 1st of each year.  The budget shall become effective when approved by the 
legislative body of each Participating Municipalitymember municipality, which 
approval shall be no later than April 1st of each year.  In the event any Participating 
Municipalitymember municipality does not timely approve the proposed budget, the 
Evart Area Joint Administrative Fire Board shall be authorized to expend funds in an 
amount not to exceed the total expenditures of the most recently approved budget 
approved by all Participating Municipalities until all parties agree on a new operating 
budget, and the Participating Municipalities member municipalities shall provide 
sufficient funds in support thereof.  The Evart Area Joint Administrative Fire Board 
may request supplemental budget adjustments at any time offrom the Participating 
Municipalitiesmember municipalities at any time, but shall not expend funds set forth 
in such budget adjustments above those budgeted unless approved by the legislative 
bodies of all Participating Municipalitiesmember municipalities. 
 
11.  Finance.  The Participating Municipalities member municipalities agree to levy and 
contribute tax monies each year in the amount equivalent of up to two (2) mills based 
upon current taxable value in each Participating Municipality, subject to voter approval 
and the Headlee Amendments, including "Headlee millage rollbacks" reducing any 
approved millage during its term, member municipality for the cost of (1) acquiring, 
constructing, remodeling, and maintaining facilities for a fire station (2).  Tax monies 
shall be distributed to the Fire Department pursuant to the schedule set forth in the 
General Property Tax Act, PA 206 of 1893. The cost of equipping the fire station and 
department with fire apparatus and equipment, and (3) shall be divided among the 
member municipalities in the same manner.  The cost of operating the Evart Area Joint 
Administrative Fire Board and Fire Department, including maintenance and training. 
Tax monies shall be distributed to the Fire Department pursuant to the schedule set 
forth in the General Property Tax Act, PA 206 of 1893, with the total amount of such 
distributions to not exceed that Participating Municipality's portion of the approved 
budget, shall be divided among the member municipalities in the same manner. 
 
The funds derived from said monies may also be used by the municipalities for the cost 
of providing fire extinguishing apparatus and equipment hereafter acquired.  
 



 6 

The funds derived from said monies may further be used by the municipalities to 
provide for the maintenance, training, operation, and support of the Evart Area Joint 
Fire Department.    

 
12.  Grants, gifts, bequests.  The Evart Area Joint Administrative Fire Board may apply 
for and receive grants, gifts, bequests, and donations of any kind or amount. 
 
13.  Audit.  The Fire Board shall cause an annual audit to be conducted of the books and 
records of the Fire Department and Fire Board, which shall be prepared and submitted 
to each municipality Participating Municipality within one hundred eighty (180) days 
after the end of each fiscal year which runs from July 1 through June 30.  Said audit 
shall be at the expense of the Fire Department and Fire Board, and shall be prepared in 
a manner in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards for Michigan 
municipalities, and any other state or federal requirements.  The audit shall include an 
annual representation of the value of fixed assets at cost less appropriate depreciation. 
 
14. Insurance. The Fire Board shall ascertain confirm that adequate insurance is 
provided to protect the Participating Municipalities Townships, City of Evart , the Fire 
Board and the Rural Fire AssociationFire Department from loss by way of damage to 
Fire Board Property, general liabilities for injury to persons and/or property, and 
Workers’ Compensation. 
 
ARTICLE V.  TERM OF FIRST AMENDED AGREEMENT.  The term of the original 
agreement was July 1, 1982 through June 30, 1986, and as automatically extended into 
2011.  The 1983 Agreement is merged into and superseded by this  this First Amended 
Agreement. The term of this First Amended Agreement is perpetual unless a 
Participating Municipality withdraws from the agreement pursuant to its terms. Any 
Participating Municipality can provide written notice to the Fire Board, before it 
proposes an annual budget for approval for the upcoming fiscal year, that a millage (as 
contemplated in the agreement) did not pass for the Participating Municipality to fund 
operations of the Fire Department. If a Participating Municipality provides such notice 
that its millage did not pass, a majority of the Participating Municipalities may allow 
that municipality to pay the proportion of its share of the Fire Department's budget in 
quarterly installments or some other acceptable frequency while it pursues alternative 
funding during the upcoming fiscal year in good faith.shall be from the date set forth in 
Article XI through the date which is 180 days after three or more of the member 
municipalities serve the Evart Area Joint Administrative Fire Board and all of its 
member municipalities with written notice of termination pursuant to Article VI below. 
 
ARTICLE VI.  TERMINATION.  This First Amended Agreement can be terminated by 
(1) one hundred eighty 180 days written notice from three or more of the Participating 
Municipalities member municipalities served upon the Evart Area Joint Administrative 
Fire Board and all of its Participating Municipalitiesmember municipalities, (2) the 



 7 

Participating Municipalities member municipalities all mutually agree to terminate this 
First Amended Agreement or (3) the Fire Board becomes bankrupt or insolvent.   
 
A single Participating Municipalitymember municipality  may withdraw from this First 
Amended Agreement by serving one (1) year written notice on the Evart Area Joint 
Administrative Fire Board and all of its other Participating Municipalitiesmember 
municipalities. Failure to pay a Participating Municipality's share of an approved 
budget as required under this First Amended Agreement shall be considered a 
withdrawal of that Participating Municipality in the year such event occurs, unless the 
amount of that Participating Municipality's share is disputed in good faith. 
 
ARTICLE VII.  DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY.  Should a single Participating 
Municipality member municipality desire to withdraw from participation in this First 
Amended Agreement, the withdrawing Participating Municipality member 
municipality shall be entitled to cash or assets at the option of the Evart Area Joint 
Administrative Fire Board, equal to one half (1/2) of the percentage share of fixed assets 
and balance of funds to which the withdrawing member municipality actually 
contributed as represented by the audit for the last year ending on or first 
occurringbefore the date of withdraw that the withdrawing Participating Municipality 
approved the budget after the date of termination.  Payment shall be made within three 
(3) years of the termination withdraw date.  In the event that liabilities of the Evart Area 
Joint Administrative Fire Board exceed assets and the withdrawing Participating 
Municipality consented to such liabilities at the time they were incurred by the Fire 
Board, the terminating withdrawing member municipality shall pay its full share of the 
liabilities liabilities in excess of its full share of the cash or assets without reducing it by 
one half (1/2) to the Evart Area Joint Administrative Fire Board within 60 days of the 
termination date, or within 60 days of the date the share of liabilities is determined, 
whichever is later. If the percentage share of fixed assets and balance of funds to which 
the withdrawing Participating Municipality is entitled exceeds its share of the liabilities, 
any sums shall be paid as described above. This amount may be deducted from any 
sums owed to the withdrawing party.  
  
Should three or more Participating Municipalities member municipalities serve written 
notice of termination as described above, at the same time or within ninety 90 days of 
each other or if this First Amended Agreement is otherwise terminated as to all 
Participating Municipalities member municipalities pursuant to Article VI, then all of 
the assets and liabilities of the Evart Area Joint Administrative Fire Board shall be 
divided by the Fire Board in the proportion of to the assets that were donated 
contributed or purchased by each Participating Municipality and in proportion to the 
financial contributions made by each Participating Municipality as reflected in the audit 
for the last year all Participating Municipalities approved the budget.member 
municipality as reflected in the audit next following the date of termination. 
 



 8 

ARTICLE VIII.  ARBITRATION.  All matters of dispute regarding the interpretation, 
application, or definition of the terms of this First Amended Agreement, and any 
controversy, claim, or dispute relating to this First Amended Agreement may be 
resolved by binding arbitration at the request of any member municipality according to 
the rules of the American Arbitration Association.  Nothing herein shall compel any 
member municipality to utilize arbitration in lieu of seeking relief in a court of law. 
  
ARTICLE IXVIII.  AMENDMENTS.  This this First Amended Agreement can be 
amended at any time by resolutions of approval adopted by each of the legislative 
bodies of all of the Participating Municipalitiesmember municipalities, and authorizing 
their respective officials to sign the amendments or amended agreement. 
 
ARTICLE IX.  SEVERABILITY.  If any article, section, sentence, clause, phrase or 
portion of this First Amended Agreement for any reason be held invalid or 
unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a 
separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portion of this First Amended Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE XI.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This First Amended Agreement shall become 
effective upon the approval of each of the legislative bodies of all of the Participating 
Municipalitiesmember municipalities, and the signing of this First Amended 
Agreement by the officials authorized to sign by the Participating 
Municipalitiesmember municipalities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 9 

 
Evart Township, Osceola County, Michigan, a Municipal Corporation 
 
 
By:  ___________________________________  ______________________________ 
       Supervisor, Evart Township    Date 
 
Attested:  ______________________________  ______________________________ 
                  Clerk, Evart Township    Date 
 
 
 
Orient Township, Osceola County, Michigan, a Municipal Corporation 
 
 
By:  ___________________________________  ______________________________ 
       Supervisor, Orient Township    Date 
 
Attested:  ______________________________  ______________________________ 
                  Clerk, Orient Township   Date 
 
 
 
 
Osceola Township, Osceola County, Michigan, a Municipal Corporation 
 
 
By:  ___________________________________  ______________________________ 
       Supervisor, Osceola Township   Date 
 
Attested:  ______________________________  ______________________________ 
                  Clerk, Osceola Township   Date 
 
 
 
Sylvan Township, Osceola County, Michigan, a Municipal Corporation 
 
 
By:  ___________________________________  ______________________________ 
       Supervisor, Sylvan Township    Date 
 
Attested:  ______________________________  ______________________________ 
                  Clerk, Sylvan Township   Date 



 10 

 
 
 
City of Evart, Osceola County, Michigan, a Municipal Corporation 
 
By:  ___________________________________  ______________________________ 
        Mayor, City of Evart  
    Date 
 
Attested:  ______________________________  ______________________________ 
                  Clerk, City of Evart    Date 
 
 
Reviewed as to form: 
 
______________________________________  ______________________________ 
James R. White      Date 
City of Evart Attorney 
 

86301:00001:5277344-9-7 











CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 1/9Page
:

05/12/2021 04:31 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 05/03/2021 - 05/17/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

2,130.00 101-440-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES80TH AVE. REFINISHING3845775105/03/2021

361.00 591-000-202.000ACCOUNTS PAYABLEAMERICAN WATER WORKS ASSOCIATION3845875105/03/2021

1,056.66 101-000-202.000ACCOUNTS PAYABLEBS&A SOFTWARE, INC3845975105/03/2021

105.67 101-203-932.000COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT38459

105.67 101-209-932.000COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT38459

1,268.00 

314.00 101-440-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESCHARGE POINT3846075105/03/2021

400.00 101-301-931.000VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINTENANCECHROUCH COMMUNICATIONS3846175105/03/2021

200.00 101-265-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESCITY OF EVART AIRPORT RENT3846275105/03/2021

200.00 590-537-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38462

200.00 591-545-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38462

600.00 

2,225.46 590-538-921.000UTILITIESCONSUMERS ENERGY3846375105/03/2021

5,165.91 591-546-921.000UTILITIES38463

7,391.37 

33.33 101-265-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESED HROSTOWSKI3846475105/03/2021

33.33 590-537-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38464

33.34 591-545-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38464

100.00 

8,078.80 591-546-732.000CHLORINE/TREATMENT CHEMICALSELHORN ENGINEERING CO3846575105/03/2021

1.48 101-265-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCEFERGUSON SUPPLY COMPANY3846675105/03/2021

1.48 101-440-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38466

11.63 207-751-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38466

1.48 208-757-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38466

16.07 

200.00 101-440-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESJOHNSON SEPTIC SERVICES3846775105/03/2021

969.00 209-276-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESMARTIN'S FLAG COMPANY3846875105/03/2021

800.00 101-301-932.000COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/ITMICHIGAN STATE POLICE3846975105/03/2021

51.33 591-000-202.000ACCOUNTS PAYABLEMWEA3847075105/03/2021

25.67 591-545-807.000MEMBERSHIP AND DUES38470

77.00 

8,512.81 590-538-731.000FERRIC CHLORIDEPVS TECHNOLOGIES, INC3847175105/03/2021

110.00 590-538-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESREED COUNTRY REPAIR, LLC3847275105/03/2021

140.00 661-599-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38472



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 2/9Page
:

05/12/2021 04:31 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 05/03/2021 - 05/17/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

250.00 

45.50 101-265-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESSINGLESOURCE3847375105/03/2021

105.85 101-441-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38473

45.49 590-537-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38473

45.50 591-545-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38473

242.34 

167.26 101-301-719.000OTHER FRINGE BENEFITSSTANDARD INSURANCE CO.3847475105/03/2021

119.47 101-850-719.000OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS38474

14.34 202-850-719.000OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS38474

9.56 203-850-719.000OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS38474

90.80 590-850-719.000OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS38474

76.46 591-850-719.000OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS38474

477.89 

110.61 101-265-850.000COMMUNICATIONSVERIZON WIRELESS3847575105/03/2021

128.36 101-301-850.000COMMUNICATIONS38475

110.60 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONS38475

110.60 591-546-850.000COMMUNICATIONS38475

460.17 

78.95 101-265-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTINGXEROX CORPORATION3847675105/03/2021

41.54 101-301-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING38476

78.92 590-537-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING38476

78.92 591-545-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING38476

278.33 

10.67 101-265-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTINGAFFORDABLE PRINTS570(A)75105/03/2021

10.67 590-537-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING570(A)

10.66 591-545-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING570(A)

32.00 

104.98 101-265-850.000COMMUNICATIONSCHARTER/SPECTRUM571(A)75105/03/2021

324.94 101-301-850.000COMMUNICATIONS571(A)

116.97 101-440-850.000COMMUNICATIONS571(A)

104.98 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONS571(A)

104.98 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS571(A)

756.85 

40.00 101-172-850.000COMMUNICATIONSDVORACEK, SARAH572(A)75105/03/2021

20.00 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONSFLACHS, MICHAEL573(A)75105/03/2021

20.00 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS573(A)

40.00 



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 3/9Page
:

05/12/2021 04:31 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 05/03/2021 - 05/17/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

40.00 101-301-850.000COMMUNICATIONSJOHN BEAM JR.574(A)75105/03/2021

20.00 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONSMARTIN, DALE575(A)75105/03/2021

20.00 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS575(A)

40.00 

2,958.71 101-440-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCEMR. ELECTRIC OF CNTRL MICH &
SAGINA

576(A)75105/03/2021

20.00 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONSMUCZYNSKI, PATRICK577(A)75105/03/2021

20.00 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS577(A)

40.00 

49.99 101-301-726.000K-9 RELATED EXPENSESPATRICK MCCLURE578(A)75105/03/2021

40.00 101-203-850.000COMMUNICATIONSPEPPER LOCKHART579(A)75105/03/2021

473.28 101-301-861.000GAS AND OILSCOTLAND OIL COMPANY, INC.580(A)75105/03/2021

176.91 661-599-861.000GAS AND OIL580(A)

650.19 

826.87 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESUSA BLUE BOOK581(A)75105/03/2021

729.17 101-210-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESWHITE LAW OFFICE582(A)75105/03/2021

729.17 101-301-801.301Attorney Fees - Police582(A)

729.16 590-538-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES582(A)

729.17 591-546-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES582(A)

2,916.67 

10.00 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONSWILSON, MARK583(A)75105/03/2021

10.00 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS583(A)

20.00 

20.00 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONSZINGER, ADAM584(A)75105/03/2021

20.00 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS584(A)

40.00 

195.67 101-265-921.000UTILITIESCONSUMERS ENERGY3847775105/05/2021

152.42 101-301-921.000UTILITIES38477

56.60 101-441-921.000UTILITIES38477

465.32 101-442-921.000UTILITIES38477

393.90 101-448-921.000UTILITIES38477

66.75 202-460-921.000UTILITIES38477

661.99 207-751-921.000UTILITIES38477

187.56 208-757-921.000UTILITIES38477

750.37 590-538-921.000UTILITIES38477

1,053.85 591-546-921.000UTILITIES38477

3,984.43 



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 4/9Page
:

05/12/2021 04:31 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 05/03/2021 - 05/17/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

187.23 207-751-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESMARTIN'S FLAG COMPANY3847875105/05/2021

15,833.34 209-276-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESRCB CONTRACTING3847975105/05/2021

133.00 101-172-957.000EDUCATION AND TRAININGFIRST BANKCARD585(E)75105/05/2021

882.00 101-191-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES585(E)

36.00 101-191-741.000POSTAGE & SHIPPING585(E)

(100.00)101-203-957.000EDUCATION AND TRAINING585(E)

89.00 101-215-860.000TRAVEL EXPENSES585(E)

250.00 101-242-957.000EDUCATION AND TRAINING585(E)

44.36 101-265-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES585(E)

54.41 101-265-850.000COMMUNICATIONS585(E)

99.00 101-265-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING585(E)

14.99 101-301-932.000COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT585(E)

23.28 101-440-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES585(E)

14.29 590-537-727.000OFFICE SUPPLIES585(E)

44.37 590-537-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES585(E)

54.41 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONS585(E)

35.23 590-537-860.000TRAVEL EXPENSES585(E)

995.00 590-539-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE585(E)

14.28 591-545-727.000OFFICE SUPPLIES585(E)

634.25 591-545-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES585(E)

725.00 591-545-807.000MEMBERSHIP AND DUES585(E)

54.42 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS585(E)

11.19 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES585(E)

4,108.48 

** VOIDED **** VOIDED **VOID586(E)75105/05/2021

220.07 661-599-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCEALRO STEEL3848075105/17/2021

215.42 101-000-202.000ACCOUNTS PAYABLEAPEX SOFTWARE3848175105/17/2021

19.58 101-209-932.000COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT38481

235.00 

8,250.00 590-538-970.100CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZEDBAKER TILLY MUNICIPAL ADVISORS,
LLC

3848275105/17/2021

8,250.00 591-547-970.100CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZED38482

16,500.00 

37.65 101-265-921.000UTILITIESCITY OF EVART3848375105/17/2021

40.15 101-301-921.000UTILITIES38483

226.88 101-440-921.000UTILITIES38483

20.50 101-442-921.000UTILITIES38483

216.42 207-751-921.000UTILITIES38483

66.56 208-757-921.000UTILITIES38483

608.16 



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 5/9Page
:

05/12/2021 04:31 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 05/03/2021 - 05/17/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

388.42 101-441-921.000UTILITIESCONSUMERS ENERGY3848475105/17/2021

2,006.33 101-448-921.000UTILITIES38484

24.35 202-460-921.000UTILITIES38484

240.21 202-461-921.000UTILITIES38484

44.72 591-546-921.000UTILITIES38484

2,704.03 

2,166.78 590-538-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESCUMMINS BRIDGEWAY, LLC3848575105/17/2021

510.24 590-538-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38485

2,677.02 

20,000.00 101-395-923.000CONTRIBUTION TO DDADDA-CITY OF EVART3848675105/17/2021

83.84 101-301-921.000UTILITIESDTE ENERGY3848775105/17/2021

160.52 101-440-921.000UTILITIES38487

251.33 590-538-921.000UTILITIES38487

495.69 

43.00 101-191-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESELECTIONSOURCE3848875105/17/2021

2,362.10 661-599-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESELLEN'S EQUIPMENT, INC3848975105/17/2021

1,444.30 661-599-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38489

3,806.40 

63.89 590-539-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCEEVART PARTS PLUS3849075105/17/2021

53.08 661-599-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38490

218.77 661-599-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38490

335.74 

17.83 101-265-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESFILE SAFE, INC3849175105/17/2021

17.83 590-537-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38491

17.84 591-545-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38491

53.50 

100.57 101-440-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESHOMETOWN HARDWARE3849275105/17/2021

9.18 101-441-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38492

11.99 101-444-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38492

65.37 207-751-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38492

47.44 207-751-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38492

234.55 

216.58 590-538-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESMENARDS - BIG RAPIDS3849375105/17/2021

216.59 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38493

433.17 

150.00 101-242-957.000EDUCATION AND TRAININGMICH HISTORICAL PRESERVATION
NETWOR

3849475105/17/2021



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 6/9Page
:

05/12/2021 04:31 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 05/03/2021 - 05/17/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

1,150.00 101-895-880.000COMMUNITY PROMOTIONSOSCEOLA-LAKE CONSERVATION3849575105/17/2021

74.55 101-265-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTINGPIONEER GROUP3849675105/17/2021

74.55 590-537-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING38496

74.56 591-545-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING38496

223.66 

1,200.00 590-538-730.000OUTSOURCED TESTINGPREIN & NEWHOF, P.C.3849775105/17/2021

129.00 101-441-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESREPUBLIC SERVICES #2393849875105/17/2021

9,602.53 101-526-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38498

50.30 209-276-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38498

57.50 590-538-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38498

57.50 591-546-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38498

9,896.83 

123.52 591-547-970.100CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZEDSLC METER, LLC3849975105/17/2021

8.66 101-265-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCESMITH LUMBER CO3850075105/17/2021

415.51 101-440-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38500

40.26 101-441-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38500

45.67 207-751-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38500

8.65 590-538-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38500

55.55 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38500

8.65 591-546-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38500

582.95 

44.91 101-301-932.000COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/ITXEROX CORPORATION3850175105/17/2021

138.18 590-538-850.000COMMUNICATIONSLINGO587(E)75105/17/2021

69.09 591-546-850.000COMMUNICATIONS587(E)

207.27 

193.60 590-538-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESAMERICAN SPECIALTY PRODUCTS588(A)75105/17/2021

193.59 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES588(A)

387.19 

30.00 101-441-840.000PHYSICALS/CDL DRUG TESTINGDRUG SCREEN PLUS589(A)75105/17/2021

30.00 590-537-840.000PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTING589(A)

30.00 591-545-840.000PHYSICALS/DRUG TEST589(A)

90.00 

135.98 101-265-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESMAURER'S TEXTILE RENTAL590(A)75105/17/2021

135.98 590-537-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES590(A)

136.00 591-545-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES590(A)

407.96 



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 7/9Page
:

05/12/2021 04:31 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 05/03/2021 - 05/17/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

321.66 101-301-861.000GAS AND OILSCOTLAND OIL COMPANY, INC.591(A)75105/17/2021

1,740.42 661-599-861.000GAS AND OIL591(A)

2,062.08 

4,934.00 101-440-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESSHADES OF GREEN LANDSCAPING592(A)75105/17/2021

         30.00 PHYSICALS/CDL DRUG TESTING101-441-840.000

        129.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-441-801.000

        155.29 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-441-740.000

      3,375.70 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE101-440-930.000

        387.40 UTILITIES101-440-921.000

        116.97 COMMUNICATIONS101-440-850.000

      7,578.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-440-801.000

        123.85 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-440-740.000

     20,000.00 CONTRIBUTION TO DDA101-395-923.000

        859.90 COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT101-301-932.000

        400.00 VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE101-301-931.000

        276.41 UTILITIES101-301-921.000

         41.54 PUBLISHING/PRINTING101-301-900.000

        794.94 GAS AND OIL101-301-861.000

        493.30 COMMUNICATIONS101-301-850.000

        729.17 Attorney Fees - Police101-301-801.301

         49.99 K-9 RELATED EXPENSES101-301-726.000

        167.26 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS101-301-719.000

         10.14 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE101-265-930.000

        233.32 UTILITIES101-265-921.000

        263.17 PUBLISHING/PRINTING101-265-900.000

        270.00 COMMUNICATIONS101-265-850.000

        187.14 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-265-801.000

        289.86 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-265-740.000

        400.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING101-242-957.000

         89.00 TRAVEL EXPENSES101-215-860.000

        729.17 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-210-801.000

        125.25 COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT101-209-932.000

       (100.00)EDUCATION AND TRAINING101-203-957.000

        105.67 COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT101-203-932.000

         40.00 COMMUNICATIONS101-203-850.000

         36.00 POSTAGE & SHIPPING101-191-741.000

        925.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-191-740.000

        133.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING101-172-957.000

         40.00 COMMUNICATIONS101-172-850.000

      1,272.08 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE101-000-202.000
--- GL TOTALS --- 

135,338.24 TOTAL OF 68 CHECKS (1 voided)TOTAL - ALL FUNDS



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 8/9Page
:

05/12/2021 04:31 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 05/03/2021 - 05/17/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

      1,303.79 OPERATING SUPPLIES591-546-740.000

      8,078.80 CHLORINE/TREATMENT CHEMICALS591-546-732.000

        164.14 PUBLISHING/PRINTING591-545-900.000

        249.40 COMMUNICATIONS591-545-850.000

         30.00 PHYSICALS/DRUG TEST591-545-840.000

        750.67 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES591-545-807.000

        187.18 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES591-545-801.000

        879.75 OPERATING SUPPLIES591-545-740.000

         14.28 OFFICE SUPPLIES591-545-727.000

        412.33 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE591-000-202.000

         90.80 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS590-850-719.000

      1,058.89 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE590-539-930.000

      8,250.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZED590-538-970.100

        518.89 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE590-538-930.000

      3,227.16 UTILITIES590-538-921.000

        138.18 COMMUNICATIONS590-538-850.000

      3,063.44 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES590-538-801.000

        410.18 OPERATING SUPPLIES590-538-740.000

      8,512.81 FERRIC CHLORIDE590-538-731.000

      1,200.00 OUTSOURCED TESTING590-538-730.000

        164.14 PUBLISHING/PRINTING590-537-900.000

         35.23 TRAVEL EXPENSES590-537-860.000

        359.99 COMMUNICATIONS590-537-850.000

         30.00 PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTING590-537-840.000

        187.14 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES590-537-801.000

        289.86 OPERATING SUPPLIES590-537-740.000

         14.29 OFFICE SUPPLIES590-537-727.000

     15,883.64 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES209-276-801.000

        969.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES209-276-740.000

          1.48 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE208-757-930.000

        254.12 UTILITIES208-757-921.000

         59.07 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE207-751-930.000

        878.41 UTILITIES207-751-921.000

        298.27 OPERATING SUPPLIES207-751-740.000

          9.56 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS203-850-719.000

         14.34 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS202-850-719.000

        240.21 UTILITIES202-461-921.000

         91.10 UTILITIES202-460-921.000

      1,150.00 COMMUNITY PROMOTIONS101-895-880.000

        119.47 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS101-850-719.000

      9,602.53 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-526-801.000

      2,400.23 UTILITIES101-448-921.000

         11.99 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-444-740.000

        485.82 UTILITIES101-442-921.000

        445.02 UTILITIES101-441-921.000



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 9/9Page
:

05/12/2021 04:31 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 05/03/2021 - 05/17/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

    135,338.24 TOTAL

      1,883.14 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE661-599-930.000

      1,917.33 GAS AND OIL661-599-861.000

      2,502.10 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES661-599-801.000

         53.08 OPERATING SUPPLIES661-599-740.000

         76.46 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS591-850-719.000

      8,373.52 CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZED591-547-970.100

          8.65 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE591-546-930.000

      6,264.48 UTILITIES591-546-921.000

        179.69 COMMUNICATIONS591-546-850.000

        786.67 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES591-546-801.000



StatusDepositCheck AmountGrossNameCheck NumberBankCheck Date

DirectPhysicalCheck

For Check Dates 05/03/2021 to 05/17/2021 

05/12/2021 04:34 PM Check Register Report For City Of Evart Page 1 of 2

Open0.00118.29118.29MISDU          2316975005/05/2021

Open0.00348.17348.17MISDU          2317075005/12/2021

Cleared719.200.001,096.15 BEAM, JOHN          DD552575005/05/2021

Cleared545.700.00754.00 DOUGLAS, RYAN          DD552675005/05/2021

Cleared666.010.00889.35 DUNCAN, JENNIFER          DD552775005/05/2021

Cleared1,355.200.001,774.04 DVORACEK, SARAH J         DD552875005/05/2021

Cleared635.740.00792.31 FIEBIG, KATHY          DD552975005/05/2021

Cleared128.840.00288.64 FLACHS, MICHAEL J         DD553075005/05/2021

Cleared255.420.00297.00 HIGGINS, JERALD J         DD553175005/05/2021

Cleared1,018.030.001,173.33 KIRWIN, DAVID          DD553275005/05/2021

Cleared789.370.001,025.82 LOCKHART, PEPPER L         DD553375005/05/2021

Cleared37.270.0040.37 MANEKE, VANESSA S         DD553475005/05/2021

Cleared564.980.00918.80 MARTIN, DALE          DD553575005/05/2021

Cleared558.780.00788.80 MCCLURE, PATRICK K         DD553675005/05/2021

Cleared796.500.001,193.68 MUCZYNSKI, PATRICK          DD553775005/05/2021

Cleared529.640.00760.00 ROHEN, MELISSA A         DD553875005/05/2021

Cleared342.260.00374.85 SWIFT-ECKERT, TERESA M         DD553975005/05/2021

Cleared963.050.001,364.16 WILSON, MARK A         DD554075005/05/2021

Cleared483.720.00721.60 ZINGER, ADAM          DD554175005/05/2021

Cleared719.190.001,096.15 BEAM, JOHN          DD554275005/12/2021

Cleared545.700.00754.00 DOUGLAS, RYAN          DD554375005/12/2021

Cleared547.280.00731.60 DUNCAN, JENNIFER          DD554475005/12/2021

Cleared1,355.220.001,774.04 DVORACEK, SARAH J         DD554575005/12/2021

Cleared540.600.00667.31 FIEBIG, KATHY          DD554675005/12/2021

Cleared9.000.00414.92 FLACHS, MICHAEL J         DD554775005/12/2021

Cleared353.820.00423.00 HIGGINS, JERALD J         DD554875005/12/2021

Cleared789.390.001,025.82 LOCKHART, PEPPER L         DD554975005/12/2021

Cleared11.900.0012.87 MANEKE, VANESSA S         DD555075005/12/2021

Cleared564.960.00918.80 MARTIN, DALE          DD555175005/12/2021

Cleared558.760.00788.80 MCCLURE, PATRICK K         DD555275005/12/2021



StatusDepositCheck AmountGrossNameCheck NumberBankCheck Date

DirectPhysicalCheck

For Check Dates 05/03/2021 to 05/17/2021 

05/12/2021 04:34 PM Check Register Report For City Of Evart Page 2 of 2

Cleared321.150.00405.00 MISNER JR, JAMES T         DD555375005/12/2021

Cleared796.500.001,193.68 MUCZYNSKI, PATRICK          DD555475005/12/2021

Cleared474.870.00578.00 PARISH JR., WILLIAM E         DD555575005/12/2021

Cleared595.690.00845.50 ROHEN, MELISSA A         DD555675005/12/2021

Cleared348.740.00382.20 SWIFT-ECKERT, TERESA M         DD555775005/12/2021

Cleared963.050.001,364.16 WILSON, MARK A         DD555875005/12/2021

Cleared483.710.00721.60 ZINGER, ADAM          DD555975005/12/2021

Open0.008,426.758,426.75MICHIGAN CONF OF TEAMSTERS         EFT57375005/03/2021

Open0.003,192.293,192.29FEDERAL 941          EFT57775005/05/2021

Open0.00298.99298.99STATE OF MICHIGAN          EFT58075005/07/2021

Open0.003,210.153,210.15FEDERAL 941          EFT58175005/12/2021

39

2

Total Check Stubs:

Total Physical Checks:

20,369.2415,594.6443,944.99Number of Checks:  041Totals:







































DPW/ Sewer & Water Communications 

 April 2021 

Streets 

• Graded 5 Mile Road 

• Patched potholes 

• Street light repair 

• Street sign maintenance 

• Researching street sweeping costs 

DPW 

• Met with Baker Tilly about 

Water/Sewer Rate Study 

• Brisbee infrared testing 

• Bagged leaf run 

• City wide brush pick up 

• Remove trees from Depot 

• Truck/Equipment maintenance 

• Mower maintenance 

• Addressed graffiti on bike trail 

• Mowed the Industrial Park and the right 

of way on US10 

Misc. 

• Cut, haul, and burn brush at Cemetery 

• Burn old election ballots 

• City-wide leaf pick up 

• Created signs for cemetery brush 

dumping/relocated dump site 

• Cleaned workshop, police department 
storage building, and WWTP lab 

• Install cameras on train bridge 

• Multiple meetings with Sarah and Kathy 

• Miss-Digs 

• Trash run (once a week) 

• Supported Earth Day clean up  
 

Airport 

• Monthly light test 

• Swept Runway 

• Repair lights 

• Mowed 

Parks 

• Preparing Riverside East for camping 

season 

• Swept walking trails at Riverside parks  

• Removed DDA sign at skatepark 

• Cut down and removed tree at Guyton 

Park 

• Removed Rain Garden signage 

Water 

• Collected samples for drinking    
 water wells 

• Completed the Monthly Operating 
Report (MOR) 

• Filled day tanks 

• Changed oil and fuel filters on 
generators on Wells 8, 9, 14 

• Rebuild pumps in Wells 1, 9 

• De-winterizing Riverside East 

• Turned water on at 116 3rd Street 

• Serviced generator on 5th Street 
wellfield, SRE Building  

• Performed daily well reads 

• Performed water and sewer reads for 
monthly billing  

• Met with Silversmith 

• Repaired 11th Street lift station 
generator 

• Repaired communication system on 
Well 9 

• Repaired cables on Primary Ponds 

• Flushed water at Riverside East and 
West 

• Flushed hydrants 

• Re-reads of water meters 

• Well maintenance on wells 4 
 

Sewer 

• Checked alarm at 11th Street lift station 
(3 times) 

• Checked alarm at 5 Mile lift station (2 
times) 

• Checked high water alarm at Tower 1 
 
Current Water/Sewer Rates 

• Water Rates: $4.82/1000 gallons 

• Sewer Rates: $9.74/1000 gallons 

• Water RTS Fee: $6.50 

• Sewer RTS Fee: $14.00

 



SEWER ELECTRIC COST (CURRENT MONTHS USAGE 
COMPARED TO PAST ANNUAL COSTS)

2021
DIFFERENCE/SAVINGS

7,593.27$                            
$659.55

3,692.46$                            
$219.44

8,252.82$                            3,911.90$                            

SEWER ELECTRIC COST COMPARED TO PRIOR TWO YEARS 
(MONTH BY MONTH)

ELECTRIC COMPARISON REVIEW FOR APRIL 2020-2021
WATER SEWER

2020

 $-

 $1,000.00

 $2,000.00

 $3,000.00

 $4,000.00

 $5,000.00

 $6,000.00

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

2019 2020 2021

$40,402.90 $39,686.42 

$16,822.16 

$0.00

$5,000.00

$10,000.00

$15,000.00

$20,000.00

$25,000.00

$30,000.00

$35,000.00

$40,000.00

$45,000.00

1

2019 2020 2021

2



23.4070

15.6160

20.6560

20.0020

20.0240

19.3830

20.4680

21.0500

18.5570

19.6270

17.7300

18.4150

20.9370

19.1860

19.4150

19.1240

19.8620

16.0730

19.6920

18.5470

16.5130

16.8060

15.0990

15.5560

16.6800

15.0380

14.7290

9.4280

12.6300

18.6160

20.8760

19.7690

18.0880

16.9430

15.4550

16.4190

16.0730

14.8850

15.9340

15.6320

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000 10.0000 20.0000 30.0000 40.0000 50.0000 60.0000 70.0000 80.0000 90.0000

JANUARY

FEBRUARY

MARCH

APRIL

MAY

JUNE

JULY

AUGUST

SEPTEMBER

OCTOBER

NOVEMBER

DECEMBER

Monthly Water Pumpage for 2018 - 2021 (in million gallons)

2018 2019 2020 2021

234.9350

216.8100

194.6710

62.5240

0.0000

50.0000

100.0000

150.0000

200.0000

250.0000

2018 2019 2020 2021

Annual Water Pumpages 2018 - 2021 Current Months Usage 
Compared to Past Annual Pumpages (in million gallons)

3



 

 

Evart Police Department 
Monthly Report 

April 2021 

 

TRAININGS 

Officer Patrick McClure completed a 6-hour course designed specifically for Michigan law enforcement, public 
safety, and community mental health responders. The class was funded by the Michigan Department of Health and 

Human Services and endorsed by the State of Michigan’s Diversion Council. 

Chief John Beam Jr. and Officer Ryan Douglas completed an online training designed for First Responders who 
interact with individuals with Mental Illness. This two-hour webinar was designed to help Law Enforcement and EMS 

personnel recognize and understand common signs and symptoms of mental illnesses. A common challenge many 
first responders face is attempting to safely de-escalate individuals experiencing a behavioral health crisis. This 

training was intended to provide behavioral health awareness and de-escalation techniques. It also promotes officer 
safety and the safety of the individual experiencing a mental health related crisis. 

Chief John Beam Jr. attended a webinar that covered Michigan's OWI and Drug Forfeiture Laws. In effect since 1999, 
the OWI Vehicle Forfeiture Law is often underutilized. In this webinar, prosecutors and members of law enforcement 

learned how to effectively implement this law in their areas. Prosecutors and members of law enforcement also 
received up-to-date changes to the Drug Forfeiture Law and how these changes will affect how they would handle 

these cases. 

Code Enforcement 

The Evart Police department has been patrolling throughout the city looking for ordinance violations. Residents were 
given a violation notice in person or notices were left on the resident’s door if no one was home to receive it. A 

reminder to city residents to maintain your lawn so that your grass does not grow above 9 inches. Also, yards need to 
be kept free of rubbish, debris, tires, and junk automobiles.  A total of 33 violation notices were delivered during the 

month of April. 

Public Relations 

Chief John Beam Jr. along with Mayor Emerick, City Manager Sarah Dvoracek, and the City Finance 
Director/Treasurer Pepper Lockhart, attended the groundbreaking ceremony for the new Osceola State Bank that will 

be built between the Osceola Grand Hotel and Foster’s Supermarket. 

 

 

 



 

Department Roster 
Title Name Badge Number 

Chief of Police John Beam Jr. 39-01 

K9-Officer Patrick McClure 39-K9 

Police Officer Ryan Douglas 39-04 

Part Time Police Officer JJ Higgins 39-06 

Part Time Police Officer Johnnie Daniels 39-03 

Reserve Officer Daniel Winters 39-14 
 

TOTAL ACTIVITIES  

OFFICER TOTAL ACTIVITIES 
Beam, John Jr. 65 

Douglas, Ryan 144 

Higgins, JJ 44 

McClure, Patrick 119 

TOTAL: 372 

 
ARRESTS  

OFFICER NUMBER OF ARRESTS 

Douglas, Ryan 0 

Higgins, JJ 0 

Beam, John Jr. 0 

McClure, Patrick 1 

TOTAL: 1 
 

 

ASSISTS  

AGENCY NUMBER OF ASSISTS 

Assist Citizen 4 
Assist Evart Public School 9 

Assist MIC Unit 2 

Assist MSP 2 

Assist OCSD 8 

Assist Police Agency 1 
Motorist Assist 1 

TOTAL: 27 

 

 



ACCIDENTS  

TYPE NUMBER OF ACCIDENTS 

Accident - Hit and Run 1 

TOTAL: 1 
 
 
 

 


	Join Using a Link
	Entering the Meeting
	Join via Phone
	151e8ed1-f77b-4a1f-aaff-8251ae10c1f6.pdf
	EVART AREA JOINT FIRE DEPARTMENT AND
	ARTICLE I.  RECITALS.
	Chairperson
	Evart Township, Osceola County, Michigan, a Municipal Corporation
	Orient Township, Osceola County, Michigan, a Municipal Corporation
	Osceola Township, Osceola County, Michigan, a Municipal Corporation
	Sylvan Township, Osceola County, Michigan, a Municipal Corporation
	City of Evart, Osceola County, Michigan, a Municipal Corporation
	Mayor, City of Evart


